
  

 

Meeting of the  

 

STANDARDS 
(ADVISORY) 
COMMITTEE 

__________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 17 July 2012 at 7.30 p.m. 
_______________________________________ 

 
A G E N D A 

______________________________________ 
 

VENUE 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1, 1ST FLOOR,TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 

5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 
 

Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 

Chair:    
Vice-Chair:    
  
  
Mr Patrick (Barry) O'Connor 
Mr Matthew William Rowe 
Ms. Salina Bagum 
Mr Denzil Johnson 
Mr Barry Lowe 
Mr Eric Pemberton 
Ms Sue Rossiter 
Two vacancies 

 

Councillor Zara Davis 
Councillor David Edgar 
Councillor Carli Harper-Penman 
Councillor Sirajul Islam 
Councillor Rania Khan 
Councillor Rachael Saunders 
One vacancy  

Councillor Anwar Khan, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Carli 
Harper-Penman, Rachael Saunders, 
Sirajul Islam and David Edgar) 
Councillor Joshua Peck, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Carli 
Harper-Penman, Rachael Saunders, 
Sirajul Islam and David Edgar) 
Councillor David Snowdon, (Designated 



Deputy representing Councillor Zara 
Davis) 
Councillor Gloria Thienel, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Zara 
Davis) 
Councillor Amy Whitelock, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Carli 
Harper-Penman, Rachael Saunders, 
Sirajul Islam and David Edgar) 

 
[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members, of whom two must be 
Independent Members]. 

 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
Simone Scott-Sawyer: Democratic Services, 020 7364 4120 or email: 
simone.scott-sawyer@towerhamlets.gov.uk  

 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

STANDARDS (ADVISORY) COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 17 July 2012 

 
7.30 p.m. 

 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR   
 

 To elect an Independent Member to serve as Chair of the Standards Advisory Committee 
for the municipal year 2012 – 13. 
 

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR   
 

 To elect an Independent Member to serve as Vice-Chair of the Standards Advisory 
Committee for the municipal year 2012 – 13. 
 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting Members from 
voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See 
attached note from the Chief Executive. 

 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

5. MINUTES  3 - 10  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Standards 
Committee held on 12th June 2012. 

  

6. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION    

6 .1 Standards Advisory Committee - Membership, Terms 
of Reference and Programme of Meetings 2012 -13   

11 - 18  

 To note the Committee’s membership, terms of reference 
and programme of ordinary meetings for 2012 – 13. The 
report is attached. 

  



6 .2 New Standards Regime   19 - 42  

6 .3 Standards Advisory Committee - Work Programme     

 To follow.   

6 .4 Recruitment of Independent Person     

 To follow.   

6 .5 Members' Attendance and Time-sheets   43 - 58  

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS URGENT  

  

 
 



1 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00036237\$c2u2jmtv.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



2 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00036237\$c2u2jmtv.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



STANDARDS (ADVISORY) COMMITTEE, 
12/06/2012 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 12 JUNE 2012 
 

ROOM C1, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
  
 
Mr. Matthew William Rowe (Vice-Chair) 
Ms. Salina Bagum (Independent Member) 
Mr Denzil Johnson (Independent Member) 
Mr Barry Lowe (Independent Member) 
Mr Eric Pemberton (Independent Member) 
Ms Sue Rossiter (Independent Member) 
Councillor Zara Davis 
Councillor Zenith Rahman 
Councillor Rachael Saunders 
Councillor Peter Golds 
 
Councillor Joshua Peck [in place of Councillor Carli Harper-Penman] 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
  
Councillor Fozol Miah 
 
 
Officers Present: 
Isabella Freeman – (Assistant Chief Executive - Legal Services, Chief 

Executive's) 
 

John Williams – (Service Head, Democratic Services, Chief 
Executive's) 

Simone Scott-Sawyer – (Democratic Services) 
 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR  
 
The Service Head, Democratic Services advised members that this was the 
first meeting of the Committee in the new municipal year.   As such it was 
necessary to elect a Chair.  That person would normally hold that post for the 
remainder of the year, although in this case would only serve until 30th June 
2012, when the Standards Committee would be abolished and the new 
standards regime would come into operation.  Mr Williams invited nominations 
for an Independent Member to serve as Chair. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 3



STANDARDS (ADVISORY) COMMITTEE, 
12/06/2012 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

2 

Ms Sue Rossiter MOVED and Mr Barry Lowe SECONDED that Mr Barry 
O’Connor be re-elected as Chair of the Standards Committee for 2012/13 or 
until the Committee was disbanded.   
 
No further nominations were received and it was therefore  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Mr Barry O’Connor be elected as Chair of the Standards Committee until 
30th June 2012. 
     
Chair for the meeting 
 
In the absence of the Chair, Mr O’Connor, Ms Sue Rossiter MOVED that Mr 
Eric Pemberton be elected Chair for the meeting and this was SECONDED by 
Ms Councillor Zara Davis. 
  
No further nominations were received and it was therefore 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Mr Eric Pemberton be elected Chair of the Standards Committee for the 
duration of the meeting. 
 

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR  
 

MR ERIC PEMBERTON IN THE CHAIR 
 
The Chair called for nominations for an Independent Member to serve as 
Vice-Chair of the Committee until 30th June 2012. 
 
Councillor Josh Peck MOVED that Mr Matthew Rowe be elected Vice-Chair 
and this was SECONDED by Ms Sue Rossiter. 
 
No further nominations were received and it was therefore 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Mr Matthew Rowe be elected Vice-Chair of the Standards Committee 
until 30th June 2012. 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Mr Barry O’Connor and Councillor 
Carli Harper-Penman. 
 
Cllr Josh Peck deputised for Councillor Carli Harper-Penman. 
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Mr Matthew Rowe and Mr Denzil 
Johnson. 

Page 4



STANDARDS (ADVISORY) COMMITTEE, 
12/06/2012 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

3 

 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5. MINUTES  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 10th May 2012 be approved as a 
correct record of proceedings subject to the following amendment: 
 
Paragraph 4.2, page 8 – Resolution should read, “That the report be subject 
to further consultation and amended before going to full Council”.  
 
 

6. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

6.1 Standards Committee - Membership, Terms of Reference and 
Programme of Meetings 2012/13  
 
In response to a query about the makeup of the new Standards Advisory 
Committee, Mr John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services explained 
that if Barry O’Connor were appointed the new Independent Person, this 
would prevent him from being a Member of the committee. He could however 
attend meetings as an observer. 
 
Mr Williams also advised the Committee that paragraph 6 a) of the report 
contained a typing error.  The co-opted members of the Standards Advisory 
Committee would in fact be voting members. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That subject to the correction above, the report be noted.  
 

6.2 Localism Act 2011 - The Amended Standards Regime  
 
The Chair drew Members' attention to tabled copies of the following 
documents: 
 

1. Localism Act – The Amended Standards Regime - report of the 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services); 

2. Extraordinary Council Meeting:18th June 2012 – Localism Act 2011 – 
The Amended Standards Regime draft report; 

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests schedule; 
4. Conservative group comments; 
5. Statutory Instrument 2012 No. 1463; and  
6. Localism Act 2011 – The Amended Standards Regime: Addendum 

report. 
 
Ms Isabella Freeman, Assistant Chief Executive, Legal Services highlighted 
the key changes and commented as follows: 

Page 5



STANDARDS (ADVISORY) COMMITTEE, 
12/06/2012 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

4 

 

• Paragraph 1 – recruitment for an Independent Person: it was agreed 
that some of the Members of the Standards Advisory Committee [SAC] 
will participate in the recruitment process  

• Paragraph 2.3 - as regards consideration of any requests for 
dispensations, officers proposed that a Dispensation Sub-Committee of 
the SAC be part of this process, with the option for such a committee to 
be convened at relatively short notice. In the case of urgent matters, it 
could be resolved by email and ratified at a later stage; 

• Paragraph 3.5 - this allowed for the possibility of the Independent 
Person being the current Chair of the Standards Committee from the 
1st July when the new SAC comes into being;   

• Paragraph 5.2 - with regards to the oversight of all complaints including 
those not referred for investigation, officers recommended that the 
Monitoring Officer and Independent Person consult on the matter 
initially, and then report to an Investigation and Disciplinary Sub-
Committee – there will be no recourse to the main committee. This was 
to ensure finality and avoid the matter becoming protracted; 

• Paragraph 5.3 - where there had been no breach of the code, it would 
be referred to the Investigation Sub-Committee and this would 
conclude the matter; 

• Paragraph 5.9 - the findings would be published in a local newspaper 
and on the Council's website. Ms Freeman assured Members that the 
decision would be published simply as a notice in the newspaper; 

• Paragraph 5.11 - with regards to the right of appeal, officers 
recommended a Hearings Sub-Committee and a separate Appeal Sub-
Committee. It was for Members to decide if a two-tier system would still 
be adopted, whilst allowing for an appeal to be made to the first tier 
tribunal; 

• Paragraph 5.13 - dealt with the monitoring of report-back to  the 
Advisory Committee as to whether a sanction had been complied with; 

• Paragraph 5.14 – dealt with situations where three consecutive 
meetings had been missed and bringing it to the attention of full 
Council.  

Terms of Reference, Appendix 1  

• Confidential matters: the proposal was for matters to remain 
confidential until a complaint was investigated and substantiated; 

• Composition - the SAC will be chaired by a co-opted member. 

 

 

Page 6



STANDARDS (ADVISORY) COMMITTEE, 
12/06/2012 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

5 

Role and function  

• Where a complaint had been referred for investigation by the 
Monitoring Officer, and such a complaint was subject to an 
investigation, the SAC/Sub-Committee would recommend whether or 
not it should proceed to hearing. 

• If the Monitoring Officer considered that a complaint should not be the 
subject of an investigation or should not proceed to a hearing, s/he 
shall convene an Investigation and Disciplinary Sub-Committee of the 
SAC and it shall be the final arbiter on the matter. 

Appendix 2  

• Complainants must provide their name and postal address when 
submitting a complaint; 

• Where the Monitoring Officer considered that a complaint should not be 
subject to an investigation, an Investigating and Disciplinary Sub-
Committee shall be convened and it shall make the final decision on 
the matter; 

• Where a subject Member feels that a recommended sanction would 
cause him/her undue hardship or prevent him/her from undertaking 
ward duties, that Member may make representations to the Council 
meeting that will consider the recommendations of the Hearings Sub-
Committee on the relevant complaint. Any such representations shall 
be notified to the Monitoring Officer within five working days of the 
Hearing Sub-Committee; 

• The content of the notice of the recommendations of the Hearings Sub-
Committee shall be agreed by the Chair of the Hearings Sub-
Committee. Following publication, a link to the notice shall remain on 
the front page of the Council's website for one month, or such other 
position or period as the Hearings Sub-Committee saw fit. The 
Monitoring officer shall draft further guidance on the detailed 
procedures for publication of decisions as necessary; 

• A complainant who was dissatisfied with the outcome of his/her 
complaint may appeal against that outcome.    Any appeal under this 
section shall be notified in writing to the Monitoring Officer within 15 
working days of the Hearings Sub-Committee recommendation being 
notified to the member or complainant and the Monitoring Officer shall 
arrange for the appeal to be heard by a Hearings (Appeal) Sub-
Committee of the SAC within 15 working days of receipt of the appeal.  
The decision of the Hearings Sub-Committee shall not be published, 
nor any sanctions applied, until the period allowed for an appeal had 
expired; 

• A member who was the subject of a complaint shall be informed of, 
and shall have the right to attend and/or be represented at, the hearing 

Page 7



STANDARDS (ADVISORY) COMMITTEE, 
12/06/2012 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

6 

of the Standards Advisory Committee or any of its sub-committees that 
considers any matter relating to that complaint following investigation. 

Members highlighted a number of issues and concerns as follows: 

• One Member queried how the Council’s Respect Councillors were 
selected for the sub committees in the past to decide on matters 
involving complaints against the Council’s Independent Councillors as 
they always voted together. The Monitoring Officer pointed out that the 
decisions of the Assessment Sub-Committee in the past had always 
been unanimous and they had two co-opted Members (non councillors) 
on them. A co-opted member confirmed that each Member had the 
opportunity to explain their opinion with reasons to the others and they 
came to a unanimous decision. This was left open to resolve when the 
SAC was operational; 

• Some Members were also concerned about the subject member's right 
of appeal, fearing that the process could drag on with no finality; 

• One Member felt that for the sake of clarity, the publishing rules ought 
to be quite prescriptive; 

• Another Member believed that there was some confusion over the use 
of the word 'confidential' and requested a clear definition for Members. 

In response, Ms Freeman made the following points: 

• With regards to an appeals process, Ms Freeman suggested a time 
period of 21 calendar days [15 working days]; 

• With reference to sanctions, those drafting the legislation were very 
definitively of the view that the only sanction should be that there 
should be a withdrawal of resources so that that Member was unable to 
use meeting rooms, or the Council’s facilities for their business; 

• With regards to confidential information, Ms Freeman advised that it 
was not possible to have a singular definition of what constituted 
‘confidential’ material. Members were advised to seek guidance from 
the Monitoring Officer. Ms Freeman offered to compile a briefing 
document of 'confidential' information based on the Constitution and 
the law.  A co-opted member confirmed that there was a need for 
stricter guidance on what they ought to be taking into account before 
they can disclose information, to ensure that information was not 
disclosed in a misleading manner or in a way that was deemed 
improper.  

RESOLVED 

1. That the Standards Committee note the changes set out in the report of 
the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) and agree the 
submission of the revised report to full council for adoption. 

Page 8



STANDARDS (ADVISORY) COMMITTEE, 
12/06/2012 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

7 

2. That the Committee note the information in the addendum report and 
that the proposed new Standards arrangements to be submitted to the 
Council for adoption will be amended to comply with the provisions of 
the Localism Act 2011 (Commencement No.6 and Transitional, 
Savings and Transitory Provisions) Order 2012 and the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 

 
3. That the Council be recommended to appoint the existing Independent 

Chair of the Standards Committee as the ‘Independent Person’ under 
the new arrangements, to serve until the completion of the recruitment 
process to that position. 

 
4. Consequent on point 3 above, that the Council be recommended to not 

appoint the existing Chair of the Standards Committee at this stage as 
a co-opted member of the new Standards Advisory Committee, but that 
he be invited to attend meetings of that advisory committee as an 
observer. 

 
7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT  

 
In response to a query by the Chair about the composition of the new 
Standards Advisory Committee, Mr Williams explained that it will comprise 
seven Councillors and seven co-opted Members. He also confirmed that the 
Chair of SAC will be a co-opted member. 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.45 pm.  
 
 

Chair, Eric Pemberton. 
Standards (Advisory) Committee 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Committee 
 
Standards Advisory 
Committee 
 
 

Date 
 

17th July 2012 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report No. 
 
      

Agenda 
Item No. 
 

 

Report of: 
 
Service Head, Democratic Services 
 
Originating Officer(s):  Simone Scott-
Sawyer  

Title 
 
Standards Advisory Committee – Membership, 
Terms of Reference, Programme of Meetings 
and Establishment of Sub-Committees 2012/13 
 
Ward(s) affected:  All 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out for the Committee’s information the membership, terms of 

reference and programme of meetings of the Standards Advisory Committee for the 
municipal year 2012/13; and invites the Committee to establish Sub-Committees in 
accordance with the Standards arrangements agreed by the Council.   

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the report be noted. 
 
2.2 That the Standards Advisory Committee establish the following sub-committees for 

the municipal year 2012/13, to be convened as required on an ad hoc basis with 
membership agreed by the Monitoring Officer from amongst the members of the 
Standards Advisory Committee, including in each case a minimum of three 
members, at least two of whom shall be co-opted members in accordance with the 
arrangements agreed by the Council:- 

 

• Investigation and Disciplinary Sub-Committee 

• Hearing Sub-Committee 

• Dispensations Sub-Committee 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of “background paper” Name and telephone number of holder 
 and address where open to inspection 

 
No unpublished background papers  N/A 

Agenda Item 6a

Page 11



 2 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Following changes to the Standards regime in the Localism Act 2011, a new 

Standards Advisory Committee will come into existence from 1st July 2012. This 
report details the membership and terms of reference of the Committee and its 
programme of meetings for the forthcoming municipal year.  

 
4 COMPOSITION (STANDARDS ADVISORY COMMITTEE) 
 
a) Membership: 
 

The Council has agreed that the Standards Advisory Committee will be composed 
of: 

 

- Councillors (who may not include the Mayor or more than one other Cabinet 
Member), appointed in accordance with proportionality rules; and 

 

- up to seven co-opted Members (non-voting). 
 

b) Six of the seven previous Standards Committee Independent Members were re-
appointed as Co-optees to the Standards Advisory Committee by the Council for a 
four year term of office subject to confirmation at the Annual Council meeting.  Co-
opted Members may serve as many terms of appointment as the Council considers 
appropriate.  A person may not be appointed as a Co-opted Member of the 
Standards Advisory Committee or one of its sub-committees unless the 
appointment is approved by Full Council. 

 
 The seventh Independent Member (and Chair) of the former Standards Committee, 

Mr. Barry O’Connor, was appointed as the interim ‘Independent Person’ under the 
new Standards arrangements agreed by the Council and has therefore not been 
appointed as a co-opted member of the Standards Advisory Committee.  Mr. 
O’Connor will however be invited to attend the Committee’s meetings as an 
observer.   

 
c)  Chairing the Committee 

The Council has agreed that the Chair and the Vice Chair of the Committee will be 
Co-opted Members. 

  
5. CURRENT MEMBERSHIP (STANDARDS ADVISORY COMMITTEE) 
 
5.1 The Annual Meeting of the Council held on 16th May 2012 appointed the following 

Councillors to membership of the Committee:  
  

Members Group Deputies 
 

Councillor Carli Harper-
Penman 

Labour Councillor Joshua Peck, Councillor 
Amy Whitelock and Councillor 
Anwar Khan  

Councillor Rachael Saunders Labour “ 

Councillor Sirajul Islam Labour “ 

Councillor David Edgar Labour  “ 

Page 12



 3 

Councillor Zara Davis Conservative Councillor Gloria Thienel and 
Councillor David Snowdon 

Councillor Rania Khan Independent                                - 

Vacancy  Respect                               - 

    
 
5.2 The following Co-opted Members of the Committee were appointed by the Council 

on 16th May 2012: 
 
 Mr Barry Lowe (appointed until May 2016) 
 Mr Matthew Rowe (appointed until May 2016) 
 Ms Salina Bagum (appointed until May 2016) 
 Ms Sue Rossiter (appointed until May 2016) 
 Mr Denzil Johnson (appointed until May 2016) 
 Mr Eric Pemberton (appointed until May 2016) 
 (one vacancy) 
 

The Chair and Vice-Chair will be appointed from the above Co-opted Members of 
the Committee.  

 
5.3 The quorum for meetings of the Standards Advisory Committee and for each of its 

sub-committees is three of the total membership and this must include at least one 
councillor and one Co-opted Member.  A co-opted member shall Chair the meeting. 

  
6. TERMS OF REFERENCE  
  

The Council using the powers under section 102(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 have established a Standards Advisory Committee. 

The Standards Advisory Committee shall have the power to create Sub-
Committees in order to discharge its advisory role. 

 Composition 
 
The Standards Advisory Committee shall be comprised of Members of the Council 
(not including the Mayor or more than one Cabinet Member), appointed by the 
Council in accordance with the requirements of political proportionality; and up to 
seven persons who are not Members or officers of the Council or any other relevant 
authority (i.e. Co-opted members.) 
 
The Co-opted member(s) will be entitled to vote at meetings under the provisions of 
S13 (4) (e) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 
 
The Committee shall establish Hearings and other Sub-Committees in accordance 
with these terms of reference. 
 

 Appointment of Co-Opted Members 
 
A person may not be appointed as a Co-opted member of the Standards Advisory 
Committee or one of its sub-committees unless the appointment is approved by Full 
Council.  The term of appointment shall be for four years unless otherwise 
determined by Full Council or the Co-optee does not continue to fulfil any required 
conditions as may be determined by the Authority from time to time.  Co-opted 

Page 13



 4 

members may serve as many terms of appointment as the Council considers 
appropriate. 

  
 Role and Function 
 

The Standards Advisory Committee has the following roles: 
 
a. To recommend to the Monitoring Officer whether or not any complaint of a 

breach by the Mayor, a Councillor or a co-opted member of the Members Code 
of Conduct should be referred for investigation by the Monitoring Officer or an 
investigator appointed by the Monitoring Officer; and where a complaint has 
been subject to such investigation, to recommended whether or not the 
complaint should proceed to hearing.   Where the Monitoring Officer considers 
that a complaint should not be subject to investigation or should not proceed to 
hearing, s/he shall convene an Investigation and Disciplinary Sub-Committee of 
the Standards Advisory Committee which shall make the final decision on the 
matter;   

b. To receive regular quarterly reports from the Monitoring Officer on the numbers 
of complaints of the Code received, the decisions taken by the Monitoring 
Officer (in consultation with the Independent Person) on such complaints and 
investigation outcomes where the investigation determines there was no 
evidence of a failure to comply with the code or where the investigation outcome 
recommends a local resolution; 

c. To convene a Hearings Sub-Committee of three Members of the Standards 
Advisory Committee comprising two of the co-opted members and one 
Councillor to consider any matter where the investigation finds evidence of a 
failure to comply with the Code and a local resolution is not possible or 
appropriate; 

d. To make such recommendations to Council in respect of the matter as the 
Hearings Sub-Committee considers appropriate as a result of any matter 
referred including; 

 

• Reporting its findings to Council for information; 

• Recommending to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of ungrouped 
members, recommend to Council or to Committees) removal from any or all 
Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council; 

• Recommending to the Mayor removal from the Executive, or from particular 
Portfolio responsibilities; 

• Recommending the Monitoring Officer arrange training for the member; 

• Recommending removal from outside appointments to which he/she has 
been appointed or nominated; 

• Recommending withdrawing facilities provided to the member by the 
Council, such as a computer, website and/or email and Internet access;  

• Recommending excluding the member from the Council’s offices or other  
premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for attending 
Council, Executive Committee and Sub-Committee meetings; 

• Recommending the Member to contact the Council via specified point(s) of 
contact; 

 

Page 14



 5 

e. To convene a Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee of at least three different 
Members of the Standards Advisory Committee (comprising two of the co-opted 
members and one Councillor) to consider any appeal against a finding of, or 
sanction recommended by, the Hearings Sub-Committee;   

f. To receive reports on compliance with any recommendation(s) made for 
sanctions to be applied in respect of any member.  

g. Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by the Mayor, Members of 
the Council, co-opted members including church and other faiths and parent 
governor representatives and where the Committee considers that there may be 
issues of concern recommending that the Monitoring Officer considers and 
reports on the issues raised. 

h. Assisting the Mayor, Members of the Council, co-opted members including 
church and other faiths and parent governor representatives to observe the 
Council’s Code of Conduct for Members; 
 

i. Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Code of Conduct for 
Members; 

 
j. Monitoring the operation of the Code of Conduct for Members; 
 
k. Advising, training or arranging to train the Mayor, for Members of the Council, 

co-opted members including church and other faiths and parent governor 
representatives on matters relating to the Code of Conduct for Members: 

 
l. To act as an advisory body in respect of any matters referred to the Standards 

Committee by the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) or Community Forums in 
respect of probity issues arising out of the codes and protocols applicable to 
relevant members of the LSP and Community Forums as set out in the 
Community Forum handbook and as may be amended from time to time. 

 
m. To advise on allegations of Member breaches of the Protocols set out in the 

constitution as may be referred to the Committee by the Monitoring Officer and 
to make recommendations with regard to such allegations as may be so 
referred. 

 
n. Advising on local protocols for both Officer and Member governance. 
 
o. To monitor and review Member and Officer Procedures for registering interests 

and declaring gifts and hospitality. 
 
p. To receive periodic reports on the Council’s Ethical Governance arrangements, 

on whistle blowing arrangements and complaints; and 
 
q. As requested by the Monitoring Officer, to establish a Dispensations Sub-

Committee to advise on any applications for dispensations in relation to 
participation at a meeting by a member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 

 
 
 
 

Page 15



 6 

 Validity of proceedings 
 
A meeting of the Standards Advisory Committee or one of its sub-committees shall 
only be quorate where at least three members of the Committee or sub-committee 
are present for its duration and such quorum must include at least one councillor 
and at least one co-opted member.  
 
Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972 applies in relation to meetings of the 
Standards Advisory Committee or its sub-committees as it applies to meetings of 
the Council. 

 
 Hearings Sub-Committee and Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee 

 
Any Hearings Sub-Committee or Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee shall comprise 
a minimum of three Members of the Standards Advisory Committee at least two of 
whom shall be co-opted members. 

 
The Hearings Sub-Committee shall consider complaints referred to it that the 
Mayor, an elected or co-opted Member of the Council may have failed to comply 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members or local protocol where the 
complaint has been subject to an investigation arranged by the Monitoring Officer 
and shall make recommendations accordingly.  The Hearings Sub Committee shall 
decide at the outset of the meeting whether it is in the public interest that the 
Hearing is held in a public or private session in accordance with relevant statutory 
guidance as advised by the Monitoring Officer. 
 
The membership of the Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee shall not include any 
member who served on the Hearings Sub-Committee that considered the same 
complaint. 
 
The Independent Person, or if that person is unable to act a reserve Independent 
Person, shall have the right to attend all meetings of the Hearings Sub-Committee 
or Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee as an observer but may not vote or 
participate in the decision making..  

 
 Attendance Requirements 
 

In the event that any Member of the Committee does not attend three or more 
consecutive meetings of the Committee, the Committee may draw the attention of 
the Council to such non-attendance and may recommend that the member 
concerned be replaced on the Committee.  
 
The Committee shall not do so without first giving the absent Member an 
opportunity to make representations (which may be made in writing) as to their non-
attendance and any matters they wish the Committee to take into account. 
 
Procedures 

 
The Committee shall agree a set of procedures to enable it to discharge the 
arrangements under these Terms of Reference. 
 
 

Page 16



 7 

 Confidentiality 
 

The Committee and any of its Sub-Committees may meet in private in accordance 
with the relevant legislation as advised by the Monitoring Officer.  Any meeting or 
part of a meeting that considers whether or not a complaint should be referred for 
investigation or, following an investigation should proceed to hearing, shall be held 
in private and all papers relating to that consideration shall remain confidential. 

 
7. DATES OF MEETINGS 2012/13 
 
7.1 The Council has agreed a schedule of dates for Council, Cabinet and Committee 

meetings and the following are the scheduled dates for the ordinary meetings of the 
Standards Advisory Committee during the current municipal year:-  

 
- Tuesday 17th July 2012 at 7.30 p.m. 
- Tuesday 9th October 2012 at 7.30 p.m. 
- Tuesday 15th January 2013 at 7.30 p.m. 
- Tuesday 16th April 2013 at 7.30 p.m. 

 
8. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER 
 
9.1 The Localism Act 2011 introduces a number of changes to the Standards regime. 

The Council has amended its own arrangements in line with those, including the 
establishment of a Standards Advisory Committee. 

 
9.2 The information provided for the Committee to note is in line with the Council’s 
 Constitution and the resolutions made by the full Council on 18th May 2011.   
 
10. ONE TOWER HAMLETS IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no anti poverty or equal opportunity implications arising from this report. 
 
11. RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
11.1 A robust Standards Advisory Committee is essential in ensuring the resilience of 

the Council’s ethical framework. 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee 
 
Standards  
Advisory 
 
 

Date 
 
17th July 2012 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report No. 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
 

Report of: 
 
Monitoring Officer 
 
Originating Officer(s): 
 
John Williams, Service Head, 
Democratic Services 
 

Title 
 
The New Standards Regime 
 
Ward(s) affected:  All 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Localism Act 2011 introduced a number of changes to the regime governing 

standards of conduct by members and co-opted members of local authorities.   The 
Council on 18th June 2012 adopted new arrangements to apply in Tower Hamlets in 
accordance with the Act from 1st July 2012.  These arrangements include:- 

• the adoption of a new Code of Conduct (attached at Appendix ‘A’);  

• the establishment of a Standards Advisory Committee, with terms of reference as 
attached at Appendix ‘B’; 

• arrangements for dealing with any complaint of a breach of the new Code 
(Appendix ‘C’); and  

• the recruitment of a statutory ‘Independent Person’ to advise on any such 
complaints in accordance with the requirements of the Localism Act.   

 
1.2 The arrangements agreed by the Council were subject to consultation with all 

councillors, the Mayor and the Independent Members of the former Standards 
Committee prior to an initial discussion at the Standards Committee on 10 May 2012.  
Following that meeting there was a further period of consultation including a 
Members’ Seminar on 30 May and a further meeting of the Standards Committee on 
12th June prior to adoption of the new arrangements by the Council. 

 
1.3 There was a consensus amongst members, the Standards Committee and in the 

responses to the consultation that the Council should continue with a robust 
Standards regime with independent Members, and that the Member Code of 
Conduct should continue to cover a broad spectrum of matters to demonstrate the 
highest ethical standards within the new Act.     

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The Standards Advisory Committee is requested to note the decisions of the Council 

on 18th June 2012 as at section 7 overleaf; and the attached appendices ‘A’ – ‘C’ 
setting out the new Standards arrangements effective in Tower Hamlets Council from 
1st July 2012. 

Agenda Item 6b

Page 19



 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Localism Act 2011 makes fundamental changes to the system of regulation of 

standards of conduct for elected and co-opted members.  The Council is required to 
adopt a new Code of Conduct.  No specific Code of Conduct is prescribed, although 
the Local Government Minister and the Local Government Association have each 
published suggested template codes.  However, the Council agreed that these omit a 
number of important matters and has adopted a code more similar to the previous 
model code.  It should be noted that the Council can amend its new Code of Conduct 
subsequently if it wishes in the light of experience of its operation and of developing 
law in this area.   

 
3.2 The Council remains under a statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards 

of conduct for its elected and co-opted members.  As far as possible the new 
framework remains close to the previous one that was well established and 
understood by members. 

 
3.3 The Localism Act repeals Section 55 of the Local Government Act 2000, which 

provided for the previous statutory Standards Committee.   So, there is now no 
requirement for a Standards Committee.   However, there is still a need to deal with 
standards issues and case work.   Tower Hamlets had a Standards Committee 
before the previous regime was introduced in the 2000 Act and the new 
arrangements are similar in many respects to those that applied then.   A Standards 
Advisory Committee has been established as a committee of Council under 
S101/102 of the Local Government Act of 1972.  This does not incorporate the 
unique features or statutory powers which were conferred on statutory Standards 
Committees.  Its composition will be subject to proportionality.  It is possible to co-opt 
non elected members onto a Committee of the Council however such co-optees 
cannot vote unless the committee is advisory. 

 
3.4 The Act establishes a new category of ‘Independent Person’ (see below) who must 

be consulted at various stages.  Independent Persons may be invited to attend 
meetings of the Standards Committee, but are unlikely to be co-opted onto the 
Committee.  Instead their role is one of consultation in respect of any investigation of 
an alleged breach of the Code before the Council takes a decision in relation to the 
allegation.  As permitted by the Localism Act 2011 (Commencement No.6 and 
Transitional, Savings and Transitory Provisions) Order 2012, the Council has agreed 
to appoint Mr Barry O’Connor, former Independent Chair of the Standards 
Committee, as interim ‘Independent Person’ pending recruitment to that position.   

 
3.5 The provisions of the Code of Conduct, procedures for dealing with any complaint of 

a breach and the other elements of the arrangements in this report apply to the 
Elected Mayor, all councillors and co-opted members of any council committee or 
sub-committee when acting in that capacity.   

 
4. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
4.1 The former ten General Principles and Model Code of Conduct have been repealed.  

However, the Council is required to adopt a new Code of Conduct governing elected 
and co-opted members’ conduct when acting in that capacity.  The Council’s new 

Page 20



Code of Conduct must, when viewed as a whole, be consistent with the following 
seven principles; Selflessness; Integrity; Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; 
Honesty and Leadership  

 
4.2 The Council has discretion as to what it includes within its new Code of Conduct, 

provided that it is consistent with the seven principles; and includes provisions which 
deal with the following matters:- 

 

• General conduct rules, to give effect to the seven principles.  This corresponds 
broadly with paragraphs 3 to 7 of the former Code of Conduct, applies to 
conduct of an elected or co-opted member of the Council or any of its 
committees or sub committees.   

 

• A requirement for registration and disclosure of pecuniary and non-pecuniary 
interests but only requiring withdrawal as specified by the Act in relation to 
‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interests’ to be defined in regulations.   

 

• Arrangements for dealing with an alleged breach of the Code. 
 
4.3 The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 came 

into force on 1st July 2012.  A Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
must register and disclose it, and his/her involvement in any business of the authority 
connected with those interests is limited.  Failure to comply with the arrangements on 
DPIs without reasonable excuse is a criminal offence, with a penalty of a fine of up to 
£5,000 and disqualification from office for up to five years.  In summary, the new 
regulations specify DPIs as pecuniary interests covering:- 

• A Member’s employment, office, trade, profession or vocation; 

• Any sponsorship of the Member, including contributions towards their election 
expenses; 

• Any contracts between the Member and the authority;  

• Any land the Member has an interest in which lies within the area of the 
authority; 

• Any licences the Member holds to occupy land in the area; 

• Any corporate tenancies; and 

• Certain securities the Member may hold. 
 
4.4 The new Code of Conduct, adopted by the Council with effect from 1st July 2012, is 

attached at Appendix ‘A’. 
 
5. ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH MISCONDUCT COMPLAINTS 
 
5.1 The Act requires that the Council adopt “arrangements” for investigating and 

deciding upon complaints of breach of Code of Conduct.  The Council has 
established a Standards Advisory Committee which will operate in much the same 
way as it did before the 2000 Act came into effect.  The committee will be an 
advisory committee (thus enabling co-optees to be fully participating members).  Its 
powers (which are very much reduced under the new legislation) are advisory. 

 
5.2 The Council agreed with the proposal by the Standards Advisory Committee that the 

Committee should retain oversight of all complaints including those not pursued.  

Page 21



The Council therefore agreed that where the Monitoring Officer is of the view that a 
complaint should not be referred for investigation, this decision should be subject to 
the Committee’s endorsement.  In order to enable a final resolution to be reached 
without delay, this function would be delegated to an Investigation and Disciplinary 
Sub-Committee of three members. 

 
5.3 The terms of reference of the Standards Advisory Committee and related provisions 

are set out Appendix ‘B’ to this report and the arrangements agreed by the Council 
for dealing with any complaint of a breach of the new Code of Conduct are at 
Appendix ‘C’.   

 
6. DISPENSATIONS  
 
6.1 Statute allows for a Member to be granted, in certain circumstances, a dispensation 

to participate in decision-making on a matter, notwithstanding that s/he has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that matter.   The provisions on dispensations are 
significantly changed by the Localism Act 2011.  Previously, a member who had a 
prejudicial interest could apply to the Standards Committee for a dispensation.  In 
future, a dispensation will be able to be granted in the following circumstances.     

 

• That so many members of the decision-making body have DPIs in a matter that it 
would “impede the transaction of the business”.  In practice this means that the 
decision-making body would be inquorate as a result; 

• That, without the dispensation, the representation of different political groups on 
the body transacting the business would be so upset as to alter the outcome of 
any vote on the matter.  This assumes that members are predetermined to vote 
on party lines on the matter, in which case, it could be inappropriate to grant a 
dispensation to enable them to participate. 

• That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests of persons 
living in the authority’s area; 

• That without a dispensation, the Mayor (or where the Cabinet is discharging 
executive functions on behalf of the Mayor, sufficient members of the Cabinet) 
would be unable to participate on this matter.   It will be necessary to make 
provision in the scheme of delegations from the Mayor to cover this, admittedly 
unlikely, eventuality); or  

• That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation. 

 
6.2 Any grant of a dispensation must specify how long it lasts for, up to a maximum of 4 

years. 
 
6.3 The Local Government Act 2000 required that dispensations be granted by 

Standards Committee.  The Localism Act gives discretion for this power to be 
delegated.    The Council agreed that dispensation requests should be subject to 
Member oversight.  However, such requests require a swift resolution and there is a 
need for consistency in their consideration.     

 
6.4 The Council therefore agreed that a Dispensations Sub-Committee comprising three 

members of the Standards Advisory Committee should be established to be 

Page 22



convened urgently as required to consider any dispensation request(s) by the Mayor, 
any Councillor or co-opted member.   

 
7. DECISIONS OF THE COUNCIL, 18TH JUNE 2012 
 
7.1 The Council Meeting on 18th June 2012 adopted the following documents with effect 

from 1st July 2012:- 
 

• The new Code of Conduct for Members (attached at Appendix ‘A’); 
• The terms of reference of the new Standards Advisory Committee (Appendix ‘B’); 

and  
• The arrangements for dealing with complaints of a breach of the new Code of 

Conduct (Appendix ‘C’) 
  
7.2 In addition the Council agreed:- 
 

• That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make arrangements to advertise for, 
and together with an Appointments Panel drawn from the Standards Advisory 
Committee in accordance with proportionality to take the necessary action to 
appoint, an Independent Person and a reserve Independent Person, whose 
appointments shall be confirmed by the Council. 

  
• That the existing Independent Chair of the Standards Committee, Mr Barry 

O’Connor, be appointed as the ‘Independent Person’ under the new arrangements, 
to serve until the completion of the recruitment process to that position;  

 
• That the current Independent Members of the Standards Committee, with the 

exception of the Independent Chair, be appointed as co-optees to the new 
Standards Advisory Committee (total six members);  

 
• That consequent on his appointment as the interim Independent Person, Barry 

O'Connor be not appointed at this stage as a co-opted member of the new 
Standards Advisory Committee but that he be invited to attend meetings of that 
Advisory Committee as an observer; and  

 
• That the Monitoring Officer have authority to convene a Dispensations Sub-

Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee, to consider and advise on 
applications from the Mayor, any Member or co-opted member for dispensations 
from the restrictions on participation in any matter in which there is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest.  

 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL 

SERVICES) 
 
8.1 The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) is the author of this report and the 

legal implications arising from this matter are set out in the body of the report.  
 

Page 23



9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Equalities considerations have been included in the new Code of Conduct. 
 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
18. APPENDICES 

 
Appendix A – New Code of Conduct 
Appendix B – Terms of Reference of the Standards Advisory Committee 
Appendix C – Arrangements for dealing with alleged breach of the Code 
 

 

 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

No unpublished background papers have 
been relied upon to a material extent in 
preparing this report  

n/a  

 

 

 

Page 24



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 
 

Effective 1st July 2012.  Adopted by the Council on 18th June 2012.   
 
CONTENTS 
 

Section Subject 

1 Introduction 

2 Scope and Interpretation 

3 General Obligations 

4 Interests 

5 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

6 Interests arising in relation to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees 

7 Effect of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on Participation at 
Meetings 

8 The Register of Members’ Interests 

9 Sensitive Information 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION   
 
1.1 Tower Hamlets Council has adopted this Code of Conduct for Members in accordance 

with the Localism Act 2011.  The Code will assist the authority in providing excellent 
local government for the people of the borough.  This Code of Conduct applies to the 
Mayor and all Members and Co-opted Members of the authority or any of its 
committees or sub-committees and it is your responsibility to comply with the 
provisions of this Code. 

1.2 Tower Hamlets’ Code of Conduct 

 
(a) Any alleged breach of the provisions of the Code of Conduct by a Member or 

co-opted Member of the authority shall be dealt with in accordance with the 
arrangements set out in Appendix A to this Code.  

1.3 Additional Codes and Protocols  

 
(a) The Council has approved the following additional Codes and Protocols:  

 

• Planning Code of Conduct 

• Licensing Code of Conduct 

• Member/Officer Protocol 

• Employees' Code of Conduct  
 

Page 25



This Code should be read in conjunction with these Codes and Protocols that 
have been adopted by the Council as supplementary guidance for Members 
and officers.   These Codes and Protocols do not form part of the Code of 
Conduct but Members and officers are required to comply with their provisions. 

 
(b) Any failure by the Mayor, a Member or co-opted member to comply with these 

additional Codes and Protocols may be investigated in accordance with the 
arrangements set out at Appendix A to this Code 

 
(c) Any failure by an officer to comply with these additional Codes and Protocols 

will be referred to the relevant Corporate Director and where appropriate 
disciplinary action may be taken. 

  
1.4 General Principles of Conduct 
 

You should read this Code together with the general principles prescribed by the 
Localism Act 2011.  These principles are listed below and they should guide all 
aspects of your conduct as a member of the authority:- 
 

(a)  selflessness; 
(b)  integrity; 
(c)  objectivity; 
(d)  accountability; 
(e)  openness 
(f)  honesty; and 
(g)  leadership. 

1.5 Further Guidance  

 
If you require further guidance on the application or interpretation of the provisions of 
this Code of Conduct or any of the additional Codes and Protocols approved by the 
Council you should contact the Monitoring Officer. 
 

2.   SCOPE AND INTERPRETATION  

 
2.1 In this Code ‘meeting’ means any meeting of: 

(a) the authority; 
(b) the executive of the authority (currently known as the cabinet); 
(c) any of the authority's or its cabinet’s committees, sub-committees, joint 

committees, joint sub-committees, panels, or area committees  
 

2.2 In this Code ‘Member’ includes the Mayor, a co-opted Member and an appointed 
Member.  

 
2.3 Subject to paragraph 2.4, you must comply with this Code whenever you: 
 

(a) conduct the business of the authority (which, in this Code, includes the 
business of the office to which you are elected or appointed); or 

Page 26



(b) act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a 
representative of the authority;  

and references to your official capacity are construed accordingly. 

2.4 Where you act as a representative of the authority: 

(a) on another relevant authority (as defined by section 49(6) of the Local 
Government Act 2000), you must, when acting for that other authority, 
comply with any code of conduct adopted by that other authority;  

 
(b)  on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body, comply 

with this Code of Conduct, except and insofar as it conflicts with any 
other lawful obligations to which that other body may be subject. 

 
 

3.  GENERAL OBLIGATIONS 
 
3.1 You must treat others with respect.  
 

3.2 You must not: 

(a)  do anything which may cause the authority to breach the Equality Act 2010 or 
any other equality enactment; 

(b) bully any person; 

(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person, including anyone who is or is 
likely to be: 
 
(i) a complainant, 
(ii) a witness, or 
(iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings, 

in relation to an allegation that a Member (including yourself) has failed to 
comply with his or her authority's code of conduct; 

(d) act in a threatening manner towards any person; 

(e) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of 
those who work for, or on behalf of, the authority. 

3.3. You must not: 

(a)  prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that person 
is entitled by law. 

(b)  disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information 
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a 
confidential nature, including information that is exempt from publication in 

Page 27



accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
(‘Part 2’ agenda items), except where: 

(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; or 
 
(ii) you are required by law to do so; or 
 
(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 
professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the 
information to any other person; or 
 
(iv) the disclosure is reasonable and in the public interest and made in good 
faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the authority. 

3.4 You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 
bringing your office or the authority into disrepute. 

3.5 You: 

(a)  must not use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to confer 
on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or disadvantage;  

(b) must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the 
authority: 

(i) act in accordance with the authority's reasonable requirements; 
(ii) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes 
(including party political purposes);  

(c)  must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 
under the Local Government Act 1986. 

3.6  When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any relevant advice 
provided to you by: 

(a) the authority's Chief Finance Officer; and/or 
(b) the authority's Monitoring Officer, 

where they are acting pursuant to their statutory duties. 

3.7 You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory 
requirements and any reasonable additional requirements imposed by the authority. 
 

4. INTERESTS 

4.1 You have an interest in any business of the authority where either: 

(a) it relates to or is likely to affect: 

(i) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the authority; 

Page 28



 
(ii) any body 

(aa) exercising functions of a public nature; 
 
(bb) directed to charitable purposes; or 
 
(cc) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union), 

of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management; 
 
(iii) any employment or business carried on by you; 
 
(iv) any person or body who employs or has appointed you; 
 
(v) any person or body, other than a relevant authority, who has made a 
payment to you in respect of your election or any expenses incurred by you in 
carrying out your duties; 
 
(vi) any person or body who has a place of business or land in the authority's 
area, and in whom you have a beneficial interest in a class of securities of that 
person or body that exceeds the nominal value of £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital (whichever is the lower); 
 
(vii) any contract for goods, services or works made between the authority and 
you or a firm in which you are a partner, a company of which you are a 
remunerated director, or a person or body of the description specified in 
paragraph (vi); 
 
(viii) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or 
hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25; 
 
(ix) any land in the authority's area in which you have a beneficial interest; 
 
(x) any land where the landlord is the authority and you are, or a firm in which 
you are a partner, a company of which you are a remunerated director, or a 
person or body of the description specified in paragraph (vi) is, the tenant; 
 
(xi) any land in the authority's area for which you have a licence (alone or jointly 
with others) to occupy for 28 days or longer; or 

(b) a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as 
affecting your well-being or financial position or the well-being or financial 
position of a relevant person to a greater extent than the majority of other 
council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the electoral division or ward, 
as the case may be, affected by the decision. 

 
 
 
 

Page 29



4.2 In paragraph 4.1(b), a relevant person is: 

(a)  a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close 
association; or 

(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in 
which they are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; 

(c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class 
of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 

(d) any body of a type described in paragraph 4.1 (a) (i) or (ii). 
 

5.  DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

5.1 A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) is defined in law as a pecuniary interest of any 
of the following descriptions:-   

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, profession 
or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of 
any expenses incurred by M in 
carrying out duties as a member, or 
towards the election expenses of M. 

This includes any payment or 
financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade 
Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between 
the relevant person (or a body in 
which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest) and the relevant 
authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are 
to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully 
discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the relevant 
authority. 

Page 30



 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with 
others) to occupy land in the area of 
the relevant authority for a month or 
longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s 
knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant 
authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial 
interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of 
a body where— 

(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has 
a place of business or land in the 
area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is 
of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 

NB:  A Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests and also those of his/her 
spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as husband and 
wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    

5.2 Subject to paragraphs 5.3 to 5.6, where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 
any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s register of 
interests and you attend, in any capacity, a meeting of the authority at which the 
business is considered, you must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of 
that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the interest 
becomes apparent; and must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest for inclusion in the register.  

5.3 Paragraph 5.2 only applies where you are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of 
the existence of the interest. 

Page 31



5.4 Where you have an interest but, by virtue of section 9, sensitive information relating to 
it is not registered in the authority's register of members' interests, you must indicate 
to the meeting that you have a personal interest, but need not disclose the sensitive 
information to the meeting. 

5.5 Subject to paragraph 7.1 (b), where you have an interest in any business of the 
authority and you have made an executive decision in relation to that business, you 
must ensure that any written statement of that decision records the existence and 
nature of that interest. 

5.6 In this Code ‘executive decision’ is to be construed in accordance with any regulations 
made by the Secretary of State under section 22 of the Local Government Act 2000. 

 

6.  INTERESTS ARISING IN RELATION TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES 
 

6.1 You have an interest in any business before an overview and scrutiny committee of 
the authority (or of a sub-committee of such a committee) where: 

(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or 
action taken by the Mayor or the authority's cabinet or another of the authority's 
committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees : and 

(b)  at the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were the Mayor or 
a member of the cabinet, committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint 
sub-committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and you were present when that 
decision was made or action was taken. 

 

7. EFFECT OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS ON PARTICIPATION AT 
MEETINGS 
 

7.1 Subject to paragraph 7.2 where you have a DPI in any business of the authority: 

(a) you must withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting considering the 
business is being held, including from any public viewing area: 

(i) in a case where paragraph 7.2 applies, immediately after making 
representations, answering questions or giving evidence; 
 
(ii) in any other case, whenever it becomes apparent that the business is being 
considered at that meeting; 

unless you have obtained a dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer 
following consideration by the Dispensations Sub-Committee of the Standards 
Advisory Committee; 
 

(b) you must not exercise executive functions in relation to that business; and 
 

Page 32



(c) you must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that business. 
 

7.2 Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the authority, or 
in relation to business before an Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the kind 
described at section 6 above, you may attend a meeting (including a meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee or of a sub-committee of such a committee) but 
only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 
evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also allowed to attend 
the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 

8. THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
 
8.1 Subject to paragraph 9, you must, within 28 days of: 

(a)  this Code being adopted by the authority; or 
 
(b)  your election or appointment to office (where that is later); or 

(c)   Disclosing a DPI at a meeting of the authority, its executive or any committee or 
sub-committee;  

Notify the Monitoring Officer in writing, for inclusion in the authority's Register of 
Members' Interests, of details of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other 
interests that fall within any of the categories mentioned in paragraph 4.1 (a). 
 

8.2 Subject to paragraph 9, you must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new DPI 
or change to any interest registered under paragraph 8.1, register details of that new 
interest or change by providing written notification to the authority's Monitoring Officer.  
 

9. SENSITIVE INFORMATION 
 

9.1 Where you consider that the information relating to any of your interests is sensitive 
information, and the authority's Monitoring Officer agrees, you need not include that 
information when registering that interest, or, as the case may be, a change to that 
interest under paragraph 8. 

 
9.2 You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any change of circumstances which 

means that information excluded under paragraph 9.1 is no longer sensitive 
information, notify the authority's Monitoring Officer asking that the information be 
included in the authority's Register of Members' Interests. 

 
9.3 In this Code, ‘sensitive information’ means information whose availability for 

inspection by the public creates, or is likely to create, a serious risk that you or a 
person who lives with you may be subjected to violence or intimidation. 

 

 

Page 33



Page 34



APPENDIX ‘B’ 
 

STANDARDS ADVISORY COMMITTEE – TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

• Agreed by the Council on 18th June 2012 

• Standards Advisory Committee established with effect from 1st July 2012 
 
 
1. Standards Advisory Committee 
 

The Council using the powers under section 102(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
have established a Standards Advisory Committee. 
 
The Standards Advisory Committee shall have the power to create Sub-Committees in 
order to discharge its advisory role. 

 
2. Composition 

 
The Standards Advisory Committee shall be comprised of Members of the Council 
(not including the Mayor or more than one Cabinet Member), appointed by the Council 
in accordance with the requirements of political proportionality; and up to seven 
persons who are not Members or officers of the Council or any other relevant authority 
(i.e. Co-opted members.) 
 
The Co-opted member(s) will be entitled to vote at meetings under the provisions of 
S13 (4) (e) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  The Standards Advisory 
Committee shall be chaired by a co-opted member.  
 
The Committee shall establish Hearings and other Sub-Committees in accordance 
with these terms of reference. 
 

3. Appointment of Co-Opted Members 
 
A person may not be appointed as a Co-opted member of the Standards Advisory 
Committee or one of its sub-committees unless the appointment is approved by Full 
Council.  The term of appointment shall be for four years unless otherwise determined 
by Full Council or the Co-optee does not continue to fulfil any required conditions as 
may be determined by the Authority from time to time.  Co-opted members may serve 
as many terms of appointment as the Council considers appropriate. 

  
4. Role and Function 
 

The Standards Advisory Committee has the following roles: 
 

4.1 To recommend to the Monitoring Officer whether or not any complaint of a breach 
by the Mayor, a Councillor or a co-opted member of the Members Code of 
Conduct should be referred for investigation by the Monitoring Officer or an 
investigator appointed by the Monitoring Officer; and where a complaint has been 
subject to such investigation, to recommended whether or not the complaint should 
proceed to hearing.   Where the Monitoring Officer considers that a complaint 
should not be subject to investigation or should not proceed to hearing, s/he shall 

Page 35



convene an Investigation and Disciplinary Sub-Committee of the Standards 
Advisory Committee which shall make the final decision on the matter;   

4.2 To receive regular quarterly reports from the Monitoring Officer on the numbers of 
complaints of the Code received, the decisions taken by the Monitoring Officer (in 
consultation with the Independent Person) on such complaints and investigation 
outcomes where the investigation determines there was no evidence of a failure to 
comply with the code or where the investigation outcome recommends a local 
resolution; 

4.3 To convene a Hearings Sub-Committee of three Members of the Standards 
Advisory Committee comprising two of the co-opted members and one Councillor 
to consider any matter where the investigation finds evidence of a failure to comply 
with the Code and a local resolution is not possible or appropriate; 

4.4 To make such recommendations to Council in respect of the matter as the 
Hearings Sub-Committee considers appropriate as a result of any matter referred 
including; 

 

• Reporting its findings to Council for information; 

• Recommending to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of ungrouped 
members, recommend to Council or to Committees) removal from any or all 
Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council; 

• Recommending to the Mayor removal from the Executive, or from particular 
Portfolio responsibilities; 

• Recommending the Monitoring Officer arrange training for the member; 

• Recommending removal from outside appointments to which he/she has been 
appointed or nominated; 

• Recommending withdrawing facilities provided to the member by the Council, 
such as a computer, website and/or email and Internet access;  

• Recommending excluding the member from the Council’s offices or other  
premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for attending 
Council, Executive Committee and Sub-Committee meetings; 

• Recommending the Member to contact the Council via specified point(s) of 
contact; 

 
4.5 To convene a Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee of at least three different 

Members of the Standards Advisory Committee (comprising two of the co-opted 
members and one Councillor) to consider any appeal against a finding of, or 
sanction recommended by, the Hearings Sub-Committee;   

4.6 To receive reports on compliance with any recommendation(s) made for sanctions 
to be applied in respect of any member;  

4.7 Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by the Mayor, Members of 
the Council, co-opted members including church and parent governor 
representatives and where the Committee considers that there may be issues of 
concern recommending that the Monitoring Officer considers and reports on the 
issues raised; 

Page 36



4.8 Assisting the Mayor, Members of the Council, co-opted members including church 
and other faiths and parent governor representatives to observe the Council’s 
Code of Conduct for Members; 

 
4.9 Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Code of Conduct for 

Members; 
 

4.10 Monitoring the operation of the Code of Conduct for Members; 
 

4.11 Advising, training or arranging to train the Mayor, Members of the Council and co-
opted members including church and other faiths and parent governor 
representatives on matters relating to the Code of Conduct for Members; 
 

4.12 To act as an advisory body in respect of any matters referred to the Standards 
Committee by the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) or Community Forums in 
respect of probity issues arising out of the codes and protocols applicable to 
relevant members of the LSP and Community Forums as set out in the Community 
Forum handbook and as may be amended from time to time; 

 
4.13 To advise on allegations of Member breaches of the Protocols set out in the 

constitution as may be referred to the Committee by the Monitoring Officer and to 
make recommendations with regard to such allegations as maybe so referred; 
 

4.14 Advising on local protocols for both Officer and Member governance; 
 

4.15 To monitor and review Member and Officer Procedures for registering  interests 
and declaring gifts and hospitality; 

 
4.16 To receive periodic reports on the Council’s Ethical Governance arrangements, on 

whistle blowing arrangements and complaints; and  
 
4.17 As requested by the Monitoring Officer, to establish a Dispensations Sub-

Committee to advise on any applications for dispensations in relation to 
participation at a meeting by a member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  

 
5. Validity of proceedings 

 
A meeting of the Standards Advisory Committee or one of its sub-committees shall 
only be quorate where at least three members of the Committee or sub-committee are 
present for its duration and such quorum must include at least one councillor and at 
least one co-opted member.  
 
Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972 applies in relation to meetings of the 
Standards Advisory Committee or its sub-committees as it applies to meetings of the 
Council. 
 

6. Hearings Sub-Committee and Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee 
 

Any Hearings Sub-Committee or Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee shall comprise a 
minimum of three Members of the Standards Advisory Committee at least two of 
whom shall be co-opted members. 

Page 37



 
The Hearings Sub-Committee shall consider complaints referred to it that the Mayor, 
an elected or co-opted Member of the Council may have failed to comply with the 
Council’s Code of Conduct for Members or local protocol where the complaint has 
been subject to an investigation arranged by the Monitoring Officer and shall make 
recommendations accordingly.  The Hearings Sub Committee shall decide at the 
outset of the meeting whether it is in the public interest that the Hearing is held in a 
public or private session in accordance with relevant statutory guidance as advised by 
the Monitoring Officer. 
 
The membership of the Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee shall not include any 
member who served on the Hearings Sub-Committee that considered the same 
complaint. 
 
The Independent Person, or if that person is unable to act a reserve Independent 
Person, shall have the right to attend all meetings of the Hearings Sub-Committee or 
Hearings (Appeal) Sub-Committee as an observer but may not vote or participate in 
the decision making.  

 
7. Attendance Requirements 
 

In the event that any Member of the Committee does not attend three or more 
consecutive meetings of the Committee, the Committee may draw the attention of the 
Council to such non-attendance and may recommend that the member concerned be 
replaced on the Committee.  
 
The Committee shall not do so without first giving the absent Member an opportunity 
to make representations (which may be made in writing) as to their non-attendance 
and any matters they wish the Committee to take into account. 
 

8. Procedures 
 

The Committee shall agree a set of procedures to enable it to discharge the 
arrangements under these Terms of Reference. 
 

9. Confidentiality 
 

The Committee and any of its Sub-Committees may meet in private in accordance 
with the relevant legislation as advised by the Monitoring Officer.  Any meeting or part 
of a meeting that considers whether or not a complaint should be referred for 
investigation or, following an investigation should proceed to hearing, shall be held in 
private and all papers relating to that consideration shall remain confidential. 

 

 

 

Page 38



APPENDIX ‘C’ 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS OF BREACH OF THE CODE OF 
CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

 
Effective 1st July 2012.  Arrangements agreed by the Council on 18th June 2012.  

 
 
1. The Monitoring Officer shall be the Proper Officer to receive complaints of any failure 

by the Mayor, a Councillor or a co-opted member to comply with the Code of Conduct 
for Members.  On receipt of a complaint the Monitoring Officer shall within three 
working days inform the subject member of the substance of the complaint on a 
confidential basis. 

 
2. The Monitoring Officer shall ensure that the Council appoints at least one Independent 

Person and at least one reserve Independent Person. 
 

3. Complainants must provide their name and postal address when submitting a 
complaint.  Anonymous complaints will not be considered unless in exceptional 
circumstances where the Monitoring Officer decides (after consultation with the 
Independent Person) that the complaint raises a serious issue affecting the public 
interest which is capable of investigation without the need to ascertain the 
complainant's identity. 
 

4. The Monitoring Officer shall, after consultation with the Independent Person  and 
within ten working days of receiving the complaint (so far as practicable), determine 
whether a complaint merits formal investigation and arrange for such investigation.  In 
making this determination the Monitoring Officer may at his/her discretion also consult 
other persons including Counsel.   
 

5. In determining whether to refer a complaint for investigation, the Monitoring Officer 
may take into account how long has elapsed since the event(s) complained about took 
place and if this is more than one year, then a complaint will be rejected as out of time 
unless the complainant demonstrates that there are good reasons for the delay such 
as fresh evidence not available at the earlier date or only recently discovered.  

 
6. The Monitoring Officer may refer a complaint of failure to comply with the Code to the 

Standards Advisory Committee or its sub-committee to recommend whether or not the 
complaint requires investigation where s/he feel that it is inappropriate for him/her to 
take the decision without seeking their advice.  Where the Monitoring Officer 
considers that a complaint should not be subject to investigation, s/he shall convene 
an Investigation and Disciplinary Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory 
Committee which shall make the final decision on the matter.    

 
7. The Monitoring Officer will report quarterly (or less frequently if there are no 

complaints to report) to the Standards Advisory Committee on the number and nature 
of complaints received and action taken as a result.  This will include details of 
complaints that did not require investigation so that the Committee can exercise its 
oversight role. 

Page 39



 
8. If a complaint of failure to comply with the Code is referred for investigation the 

Monitoring Officer shall appoint an investigator or complete the investigation 
him/herself.  Such investigation should be completed within one month of the decision 
to refer the matter for investigation.  The Monitoring Officer may, having consulted the 
Standards Advisory Committee or its sub-committee, extended this period by up to a 
further month where s/he feels it is necessary to ensure an adequate investigation.  

 
9. The Monitoring Officer may, during the course of the investigation, seek local 

resolution of the matter to the satisfaction of the complainant before the investigation 
is concluded. 

 
10. Where any investigation into a complaint of breach of the Code finds no evidence of 

failure to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer shall within ten 
working days of receipt of the investigation report, consult with the Independent 
Person and the Standards Advisory Committee Investigations and Disciplinary Sub-
Committee to confirm their agreement that the matter shall be closed without further 
hearing.  If the Sub-Committee agree then the matter is closed.  The Monitoring 
Officer shall provide a copy of the report and findings of the investigation which shall 
be kept confidential to the complainant and to the member concerned and shall report 
the matter as part of the quarterly report to the Standards Advisory Committee for 
information. 

 
11. Where the investigation finds evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of conduct, 

the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person, may seek local 
resolution to the satisfaction of the complainant in appropriate cases, with a summary 
report for information to Standards Advisory Committee in due course.  Where such 
local resolution is not appropriate or not possible the Monitoring Officer shall report the 
investigation findings to a Hearings Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory 
Committee for local hearing and recommendations.  The Hearings Sub-Committee will 
be convened within one month of the Monitoring Officer receiving the investigation 
report.  The Hearings Sub-Committee may sit in private after advice from the 
Monitoring Officer. 

 
12. The Hearings Sub-Committee will advise the Monitoring Officer whether or not they 

consider there has been a breach of the Code and if they consider sanction is 
appropriate having heard the matter shall request that the Monitoring Officer prepare a 
report to Full Council setting out the details of the investigation, hearing and proposed 
sanction which may include any of the following:- 
 

• Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of ungrouped 
members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she be removed 
from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council; 

• Recommend to the Mayor that the member be removed from the Executive, 
or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities; 

• Recommend the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the member 
(subject to the Members agreement); 

• Recommend remove as from all outside appointments to which the Member 
has been appointed or nominated; 

Page 40



• Recommend withdrawing facilities provided to the member by the Council, 
such as a computer, website and/or email and Internet access; or 

• Recommend excluding the member from the Council’s offices or other  
premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for attending 
Council, Executive Committee and Sub-Committee meetings (as appropriate); 

• Recommend the member to contact the Council via specified point(s) of 
contact; 

• Write to the member with their advice on the Members conduct. 
 
13. In determining any recommended sanction the Sub-Committee may take into account 

any previous breach by the member concerned and/or their compliance with any 
previous sanction applied. 

 
14. Where a subject member feels that a recommended sanction would cause him/her 

undue hardship or prevent him/her from undertaking ward duties, that Member may 
make representations to the Council meeting that will consider the recommendations 
of the Hearings Sub-Committee on the relevant complaint.  Any such representations 
shall be notified to the Monitoring Officer within five working days of the Hearing Sub-
Committee meeting. 

  
15. The recommendations of the Hearings Sub-Committee shall be published in a local 
newspaper in the Public Notices Section and on the Council’s website as well as in the 
minutes of the meeting.  The content of any notice to be published shall be subject to 
agreement by the Chair of the Hearings Sub-Committee.  Following publication, a link to 
the notice shall remain on the front page of the Council’s website for a period of one 
month or such other position and/or period as the Hearings Sub-Committee may 
recommend.  The Monitoring Officer shall draft further guidance on the detailed 
procedures for publication of decisions as necessary. 

 
16. A member who is the subject of a finding by the Standards Advisory Committee that 

he/she has breached the code may appeal against that finding and/or against any 
sanction applied.  A complainant who is dissatisfied with the outcome of his/her 
complaint may appeal against that outcome.    Any appeal under this section shall be 
notified in writing to the Monitoring Officer within 15 working days of the Hearings Sub-
Committee recommendation being notified to the member or complainant and the 
Monitoring Officer shall arrange for the appeal to be heard by a Hearings (Appeal) 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee within 15 working days of 
receipt of the appeal.  The decision of the Hearings Sub-Committee shall not be 
published, nor any sanctions applied, until the period allowed for an appeal has 
expired. 

 
17. An appeal under 15 above may be made on grounds of either fact or defective 

procedure.  The appellant must state the grounds on which the appeal is made and 
must provide specific reasons and any further information to support his/her appeal.   

 
18. The Sub-Committee to hear any appeal under 15 above shall not include any member 

of the Hearings Sub-Committee that considered the investigation of the matter in 
question.  

 

Page 41



19. A member who is the subject of a complaint shall be informed of, and shall have the 
right to attend and/or be represented at, the hearing of the Standards Advisory 
Committee or any of its sub-committees that considers any matter relating to that 
complaint following investigation. 

 
20. The timelines set out in this procedure are for guidance only and shall be observed 

where practicable but may be extended by the Monitoring Officer as necessary if they 
cannot be complied with by any relevant party due to sickness, holidays or other 
reasonable cause. 

 

Page 42



 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report updates the Committee on a range of matters related to Councillors’ 

attendance at formal meetings and training events, completion of timesheets and 
the register of interests.  Some amendments to the format and content of the 
report have been made and additional information included, as requested by the 
former Standards Committee.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Standards Advisory Committee: 
 

(i) Note the information set out in Appendices 1, 2 and 3 in relation to 
Councillors’ submission of timesheets, attendance at formal meetings and 
training events, and completion of the register of interests during the 
previous and current municipal years;  

 
(ii)  Consider whether there is a need to ask the Chair to write to any 

Councillor(s) in connection with any of the monitoring information; and 
 
(iii) Agree to receive further monitoring reports at six monthly intervals.   
 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Since April 2004 the former Standards Committee received regular monitoring 

reports on the completion of Members’ timesheets and attendance by Members at 
Council and other formal meetings. 

 
3.2 At recent meetings the Committee has discussed how to build on this good 

practice by incorporating additional information in the reports and presenting the 
information in the most suitable way to enhance transparency and accountability.  
In April 2009 the Committee agreed a number of proposed changes to the 
monitoring regime and these are incorporated in this report.   

 Committee 
 

Standards 
Advisory  
 

Date 
 

17th July 2012  

Classification 
 

UNRESTRICTED 

Agenda Item No. 
 
 
 

Report of   
 

Service Head, Democratic 
Services 
 
Originating Officer(s): 
 

John Williams 
 

Title 
 

Members’ Attendance, Timesheets and Declaration 
of Interests:  Monitoring Report  
 
Wards affected  
 

ALL 
 

Agenda Item 6e

Page 43



4. MEMBERS’ TIMESHEETS 
 
4.1 Tower Hamlets Councillors have, since April 2002, completed monthly timesheets 

detailing the time spent on council duties, split into categories such as surgeries, 
casework, attendance at meetings/external bodies etc.     

 
4.2 Members’ timesheets are posted on the ‘Meet your Councillor’ pages of the 

Council’s website which also contain information on the ward represented, 
committee/external appointments, surgery arrangements, contact and other 
details.  Councillors are personally responsible for the accuracy and timely 
submission of their timesheets.   

 
4.3 Completion of timesheets is not a statutory requirement and does not affect the 

Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances paid to Members.  However, the 
London Councils Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors have 
emphasised the need for an accountable and transparent allowances scheme.  In 
their 2001 report, the Independent Panel identified the tasks and responsibilities 
which they believed were the essential remit of a Councillor.  In proposing a Basic 
Allowance to apply to all Councillors, they assumed a “contribution” of 40 hours 
per month on top of a “voluntary commitment” of 20 hours for each Member.  
Tower Hamlets has voluntarily developed the timesheet system to enhance 
transparency.   

 
4.4 The Standards Committee has placed great importance on the timely and 

accurate completion of timesheets and the monitoring arrangements have placed 
Tower Hamlets at the forefront of best practice in this area as very few other local 
authorities have any such formal monitoring system in place.  In accordance with 
the Committee’s previous request, the table at Appendix 1 now includes, in 
addition to a snapshot of timesheets completed as at the date of the Standards 
Committee meeting, information on when each timesheet was submitted and a 
figure at the bottom of each column showing the average number of total hours 
recorded on each of the timesheets submitted in respect of that month.   

 
The current position – completion of timesheets 

 
4.5 In relation to the submission of timesheets the current position, as at 4 July 2012 

and set out in Appendix 1 attached, is that 18 Members (35.3% of the total) have 
completed their timesheets up to and including May 2012.  21 Councillors (41.2%) 
are more than three months in arrears.   An updated schedule will be tabled at the 
meeting, if necessary. 

 
4.6 The Committee may wish to follow previous practice and ask the Chair to write to 

those Members who are significantly in arrears, drawing his/her attention to the 
need to maintain an up to date record.          

 

Page 44



5. MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 
 
5.1  As with timesheets, attendance at committee/panel meetings is not a statutory 

requirement - the law simply says that if a Councillor fails to attend any Council or 
other qualifying meeting for a period of six months, he/she shall cease to be a 
Member of the local authority - and it is accepted that many important Council 
duties take place outside formal meetings.  Nevertheless, attendance at meetings 
to which he/she has been appointed does represent a key part of a Councillor’s 
work and the combination of attendance and timesheet monitoring information in 
this report provides a useful picture of a Councillor’s activity for the purpose of 
accountability. 

  
5.2 In April 2009 the Committee asked that where a Councillor has failed to attend a 

formal meeting but has submitted apologies in advance, this should be noted in 
the report.  The attached schedule has been amended to incorporate these 
changes.   

 
The current position - attendance at meetings 
 

5.3 The charts at Appendix 2 show the record of attendance by Councillors at formal 
constitutional meetings during the last and current municipal years (i.e. from 18th 
May 2011 to 15th May 2012 and 16th May to 30th June 2012).   

 
 
6. MEMBERS’ DECLARATION OF INTERESTS AND ATTENDANCE AT 

MANDATORY TRAINING EVENTS  
 
6.1 The Committee has previously requested that information be included in the 

report on two matters that are key to Councillor accountability and ethical 
governance – (i) Members’ completion of the register of personal interests, and (ii) 
attendance at mandatory training events including seminars on the Code of 
Conduct and further specific training for Councillors appointed to the quasi-judicial 
committees.  This information is summarised in Appendix 3 attached and further 
explanatory information is below:-  

 
6.2 Updates to the register of Members’ interests:  Members are required to 

complete a register of their interests within 28 days of becoming a Councillor and 
subsequently they must notify any change to this within 28 days of becoming 
aware of the change.  Members receive six-monthly reminders to update the 
register with any changes.  All Councillors were advised of the requirements 
immediately following their election on 6 May 2010 and the attached schedule lists 
the date of each Councillor’s latest update to their register entry.   

Page 45



6.3 As a matter of good practice and for the purpose of clarity, Members are asked to 
provide a nil return if there are no changes to register at the six-monthly reminder.  
However it is important to note that failure to do so would not represent a breach 
of the Code of Conduct.  

 
Gifts and hospitality register 

 
6.4 The Committee has previously requested information on the recording of gifts and 

hospitality received by Members.   
 
6.5 The Code of Conduct provides that a Councillor shall have a personal interest in 

any business of the authority that relates to the interests of any person from whom 
he/she has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25.  
Any such gifts or hospitality must be registered and, if they were received during 
the previous three years, must be declared at any relevant meeting.   Gifts and 
hospitality are now recorded as part of the main register of Members’ interests 
form.   

 
6.6 Attendance at training events:  The Committee has also sought assurance 

regarding Councillors’ attendance at relevant mandatory training events such as 
those on the Code of Conduct and the specific sessions arranged for members of 
the Development, Licensing and Appeals Committees and the Appointments Sub-
Committee.  This information is now incorporated into the schedule at Appendix 3, 
together with the total number of attendances at other (non-mandatory) in-house 
Member seminars during the year. 

 
 
7. OBSERVATIONS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
8.1 The Localism Act 2011 introduced new arrangements to govern the Standards of 

Conduct for local authority members and co-optees.  Seven guiding principles of 
conduct are set out:- selflessness; integrity; objectivity; accountability; openness; 
honesty and leadership.   

 
 
9. IMPLICATIONS FOR ONE TOWER HAMLETS 
 
9.1 There are no specific implications for One Tower Hamlets arising from the 

proposals in this report. 
  

Page 46



10. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no specific anti-poverty issues arising from the proposals in this report. 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no risk management implications. 
 
 
12. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT (SAGE) 

 
12.1 There are no SAGE implications arising directly from this report. 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Brief description of "background paper"  Name and telephone number 

of holder and address where  
open to inspection 

 

Reports by the Independent Panel on the    John Williams  020 7364 4204 
Remuneration of Councillors in London    Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 
        5 Clove Crescent, London, 
Councillors timesheets and attendance files   E14 2BG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



MEMBERS MONTHLY TIMESHEETS – SUMMARY OF RETURNS 
MADE FROM MAY 2011 TO APRIL 2012 

 
Councillor MAY 

2011 
JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN 

2012 
FEB MAR APR 

 

Helal Abbas 7.10.11 7.10.11 7.10.11 7.10.11 7.10.11 12.1.12 12.1.12 12.1.12     

Kabir Ahmed 14.12.11 14.12.11 14.12.11 14.12.11 14.12.11 14.12.11 14.12.11 3.1.12 25.6.12 25.6.12 25.6.12 25.6.12 

Khales U. Ahmed 6.6.11 8.8.11 8.8.11 28.9.11 10.10.11 - 8.12.11 16.1.12 2.2.12 12.2.12 2.6.12 2.6.12 

Ohid Ahmed 19.7.11 19.7.11 1.7.11 10.11.11 10.11.11 Yes Yes Yes 17.1.12 11.4.12 11.4.12 10.5.12 

Rajib Ahmed Yes 19.7.11 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 4.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12     

Rofique Ahmed 2.6.11 4.7.11 3.8.11 Yes 5.10.11 7.11.11 7.12.11 4.1.12 1.2.12 8.3.12 4.4.12 9.5.12 

Shahed Ali 18.7.11 18.7.11 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 9.7.12 9.7.12 9.7.12 9.7.12 

Timothy Archer   6.6.11 4.7.11 3.8.11 1.9.11 13.10.11 1.11.11 30.11.11 11.1.12 9.2.12 15.3.12 20.4.12  

Abdul Asad Yes 1.8.11 1.8.11 1.10.11 1.10.11 7.11.11 2.12.11 6.1.12 1.2.12 2.3.12 2.4.12 3.5.12 

Craig Aston 14.6.11 4.1.12 4.1.12 4.1.12 4.1.12 4.1.12 4.1.12 12.1.12 9.2.12    

Lutfa Begum 1.6.11 13.1.12 13.1.12 13.1.12 13.1.12 13.1.12 13.1.12 13.1.12 14.2.12 18.5.12 18.5.12  

Mizanur Chaudhury 22.12.11 22.12.11 22.12.11 22.12.11 22.12.11 22.12.11 22.12.11 3.1.12     

Alibor Choudhury 8.7.11 5.8.11 9.8.11 7.10.11 7.10.11 25.11.11 9.1.12 3.1.12 Yes Yes Yes 9.5.12 

Zara Davis 8.6.11 1.7.11 17.8.11 12.9.11 10.10.11 7.11.11 5.12.11 3.1.12 9.2.12 16.3.12 20.3.12 23.5.12 

Stephanie Eaton 19.7.11 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12     

David Edgar 10.8.11 10.8.11 3.8.11 22.12.11 22.12.11 22.12.11 22.12.11 3.1.12 1.2.12 1.3.12 2.4.12 2.5.12 

Marc Francis 14.7.11 27.7.11 2.9.11 2.9.11 4.11.11 4.11.11 17.5.12 17.5.12 23.5.12 21.5.12 21.5.12 23.5.12 

Judith Gardiner 19.7.11 19.7.11           

Carlo Gibbs 4.7.11 4.7.11 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 2.2.12    

Peter Golds 1.6.11 13.7.11 17.8.11 9.9.11 4.11.11 4.11.11 21.12.11 12.1.12 9.2.12 15.3.12 20.3.12 23.5.12 

Shafiqul Haque 13.7.11 13.7.11 23.12.11 23.12.11 23.12.11 23.12.11 23.12.11 11.5.12 11.5.12 11.5.12 11.5.12 11.5.12 

Carli Harper-Penman 2.8.11 2.8.11 2.8.11 9.5.12 9.5.12 9.5.12 9.5.12 9.5.12 9.5.12 9.5.12 9.5.12 9.5.12 
Sirajul Islam 18.7.11 18.7.11 4.10.11 4.10.11 4.10.11 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 21.2.12 21.3.12   

Ann Jackson             

Denise Jones 19.7.11 19.7.11 28.6.12 28.6.12 28.6.12 28.6.12 28.6.12 28.6.12 28.6.12 28.6.12 28.6.12 28.6.12 
Emma Jones 8.6.11 14.7.11 5.1.12 3.10.11 3.10.11 7.11.11 5.12.11 3.1.12 9.2.12 15.3.12 20.3.12 24.5.12 

Aminur Khan 11.7.11 18.7.11 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 10.2.12 27.4.12 Yes  

Anwar Khan - - 10.11.11 11.10.11 11.10.11        

Rabina Khan 14.7.11 14.7.11 5.10.11 3.12.11 3.10.11 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 17.4.12 12.4.12 17.4.12 9.5.12 

Rania Khan 14.7.11 14.7.11 6.10.11 6.10.11 6.10.11 4.1.12 4.1.12 4.1.12     

Shiria Khatun             

Fozol Miah  14.7.11 14.7.11 13.12.11 13.12.11 13.12.11 13.12.11 13.12.11 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Harun Miah  11.8.11 20.10.11 20.10.11 20.12.11 20.12.11 20.12.11 20.12.11      

 
 
 

 

APPENDIX 1 

P
age 48



Councillor MAY 
2011 

JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN 
2012 

FEB MAR APR 
 

Maium Miah 25.7.11 25.7.11 14.9.11 14.9.11 Yes Yes 4.1.12 4.1.12 10.2.12 14.6.12 14.6.12 14.6.12 

Md. Abdul Mukit MBE 19.7.11 19.7.11 7.12.11 7.12.11 7.12.11 7.12.11 7.12.11 Yes 3.7.12 3.7.12 3.7.12 3.7.12 

Ahmed Omer             

Lesley Pavitt 1.6.11 1.7.11 24.7.11 19.9.11 16.9.11 8.10.11 16.12.11 4.1.12 5.1.12 2.3.12 2.4.12 8.5.12 

Joshua Peck 27.5.11 4.7.11 1.8.11 1.9.11 7.11.11 7.11.11 2.12.11 9.1.12 27.2.12 1.3.12 2.4.12 1.5.12 

Oliur Rahman 11.1.12 11.1.12 17.1.12 17.1.12 9.1.12 9.1.12 9.1.12 16.2.12 16.1.12 16.4.12 16.4.12 2.5.12 

Zenith Rahman 9.8.11 9.8.11 Yes 1.9.11 3.10.11 2.11.11 3.12.11 17.5.12 17.5.12 17.5.12 17.5.12 Yes 

Gulam Robbani  - - - - - - - - - - -  

Rachael Saunders 19.7.11 19.7.11           

David Snowdon 13.7.11 13.7.11 9.1.12 9.1.12 9.1.12 9.1.12 9.1.12 12.1.12     

Gloria Thienel 8.6.11 14.7.11 17.8.11 28.9.11 5.10.11 1.11.11 6.12.11 4.1.12 9.2.12 16.3.12 20.4.12 23.4.12 

Bill Turner             

Helal Uddin 25.7.11 25.7.11 21.12.11 21.12.11 21.12.11 18.5.12 18.5.12 18.5.12 18.5.12 18.5.12 18.5.12 3.7.12 

Kosru Uddin 15.10.11 15.10.11 15.10.11 15.10.11 15.10.11 1.11.11 6.12.11 3.1.12 6.2.12    

Abdal Ullah              

Motin Uz-Zaman  1.7.11 1.7.11 1.8.11          

Amy Whitelock  4.7.11 4.7.11 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12 3.1.12     

             

AVERAGE HOURS 
RECORDED FOR 
MONTH 

63.7 60.2 62.9 54.6 66.6 64.5 96.2 60.8 72.4 73 71.6 61.3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 49



MEMBERS MONTHLY TIMESHEETS – SUMMARY OF RETURNS 
MADE FROM MAY 2012 TO JUNE 2012 

 
Councillor MAY 

2012 
JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN 

2013 
FEB MAR APR 

 

Helal Abbas             

Kabir Ahmed 25.6.12            

Khales U. Ahmed 2.6.12            

Ohid Ahmed             

Rajib Ahmed             

Rofique Ahmed 6.6.12 3.7.12           

Shahed Ali 9.7.12            

Timothy Archer             

Abdul Asad 4.6.12            

Craig Aston             

Lutfa Begum             

Mizanur Chaudhury             

Alibor Choudhury 8.6.12            

Zara Davis             

Stephanie Eaton             

David Edgar 2.7.12 2.7.12           

Marc Francis             

Judith Gardiner             

Carlo Gibbs             

Peter Golds             

Shafiqul Haque 18.6.12            

Carli Harper-Penman 29.6.12 29.6.12           

Sirajul Islam             

Ann Jackson             

Denise Jones 28.6.12 3.7.12           

Emma Jones             

Aminur Khan             

Anwar Khan             

Rabina Khan 11.6.12            

Rania Khan             

Shiria Khatun             

Fozol Miah              

Harun Miah              

 
 

APPENDIX 1 

P
age 50



Councillor MAY 
2012 

JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN 
2013 

FEB MAR APR 
 

Maium Miah 14.6.12            

Md. Abdul Mukit MBE 3.7.12 3.7.12           

Ahmed Omer             

Lesley Pavitt 5.6.12 3.7.12           

Joshua Peck 1.6.12            

John Pierce             

Oliur Rahman 25.6.12            

Zenith Rahman             

Gulam Robbani             

Rachael Saunders 6.6.12            

David Snowdon             

Gloria Thienel             

Bill Turner             

Helal Uddin 3.7.12 3.7.12           

Kosru Uddin             

Abdal Ullah              

Motin Uz-Zaman              

Amy Whitelock              

             

AVERAGE HOURS 
RECORDED FOR 
MONTH 

76.3 77.6           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



 Council Cabinet Dev 
Cttee 

Licensing 
Cttee 

O & S 
Cttee 

Health 
Scrutiny 

Panel 

Standards 
Cttee 

Pensions  
Cttee 

Human 
Resources 

Cttee 

Appeals 
Cttee 

Appts 
Sub Cttee 

 

General 
Purposes 

Cttee 

 

Strategic 
Dev 

Cttee 

Licensing 
Sub-Cttee 

Audit  
Cttee 

 

Total Held 6 12 13 3 ( + 1 
cancelled) 

13 5 4 2 + (2 
inquorate) 

5 + (2 
postponed) 

9 (incl 1 x 
training) 

4 5 + ( 1 
postponed) 

11 + (1 
postponed) 

38 4 + ( 1 
postponed) 

                

H. Abbas 6  12 (1Ap)          9 (2 Ap)   

K. Ahmed 6   1  of 2 
(1Ap) 

         *3  

K. U. Ahmed 6   3      **4  1 (dep)  10 (1 Ap) *27 2 (2 Ap) 

O. Ahmed 6 11 (1Ap)       3  of 4 
(1 Ab) 

 4     

R. Ahmed 6   3          *13  

R. U. Ahmed 5 (1Ap) 10  of 11 
(1 Ap) 

 1 of 1        1  of 1  *1  

S. Ali 6 7 of 11 
(3 Ap,  
1 Ab) 

       **1      

T. Archer 6  2 (dep)  12 (1Ap)       1 (dep)    

A. Asad 6 11  of 11    1 of 2 
(1 Ap) 

         

C. Aston 6  9 (4Ap)     2 (2 Ap) 2 (dep)   3 (dep)   2 (1 Ap, 
1Ab) 

L. Begum 5 (1Ap)     1  of 3 
(2 Ab) 

         

M. Chaudhury 6   1 of 2 
(1 Ap) 

       2 (3 Ap)  *1  

A. Choudhury 6 12       3  of 4  
(1 Ap)  

     2 of 2 

Z. Davis 6   2  of 2   3 (1 Ap)       *2  

S. Eaton 5 (1Ap)    7 (6Ap)          4 

D. Edgar 6     5      1 (dep)   3 (1 Ap) 

M. Francis 5 (1Ap)  11 (2Ap) 1 (2 Ap)        1 (dep)  *4  

J. Gardiner 6    4 (dep)      3  8 (2 Ap) 
(1Ab) 

  

C. Gibbs 6            9  (2 Ap)  4 

P. Golds 6  4 (dep) 2 (1Ap) 4 (dep)     1 (trng) 
1 (dep) 

  5 (dep) *19  

S. Haque 6 10  of 11 
(1Ap) 

 1  of 1        1  of 1    

C. Harper-
Penman 

5 (1Ap)   2 (1 Ap)   1 (1 Ap, 
2 Ab) 

      *7  

S. Islam 6   1 (2 Ap) 11 (2Ap)       4  of 4  *4  

A. Jackson 6  3 (dep)  13    3 (1 Ap,  
1 Ab) 

      

D. Jones  6     5       4 (dep)  3 (1 Ap) 

E. Jones 6 (1Ap)     4 (1 Ap)    1 (trng)   5 (5 Ap) 
(1 Ab) 

  

*   Part of pool of Members to sit on Licensing Sub-Committees                      
** Part of pool of Members to sit on Appeals Committees    

                  MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE – 18 MAY 2011 – 15 MAY 2012                          APPENDIX 2 
 

P
age 52



 
 

 Council Cabinet Dev 
Cttee 

Licensing 
Cttee 

O & S 
Cttee 

Health 
Scrutiny 

Panel 

Standards 
Cttee 

Pensions  
Cttee 

Human 
Resources 

Cttee 

Appeals 
Cttee 

Appts 
Sub Cttee 

 

General  
Purposes 

Cttee 

 

Strategic 
Dev 

Cttee 

Licensing 
Sub-Cttee 

Audit  
Cttee 

 

Total Held 6 12 13 3 (+ 1 
cancelled) 

13 5 4 2 + (2 
inquorate) 

5 + (2 
postponed) 

9 (incl 1 x 
training) 

4 5 + (1 
postponed) 

11  + (1 
postponed) 

38 4 + ( 1 
postponed 

                

Aminur Khan 6       1  of 2  
(1 Ab) 

       

Anwar Khan  5 (1 Ap)  1 (dep) (1 Ap)    4 (2 
inquorate) 

 **3      

Rabina Khan 6 11 (1Ap)              

Rania Khan 6 9 (3 Ap)      0 of 2 
(1 Ap, 1 Ab) 

       

S. Khatun 6  10 (3 Ap)         5    

F. Miah 6    1 (5 Ap 
7 Ab) 

 1 (Ap, 3 Ab)         

H. Miah 6         **4       

M. Miah 6  5  of 8 
(3Ap) 

   1 (1 Ap, 
 2 Ab) 

    2   
(3 Ap)  

   

M. A. Mukit  5 (1 Ab)        4 (1 Ap)    2  of 4 
(2 Ap) 

   

A. Omer 5 (1 Ap)       1 (1 Ap, 
 1 Ab) 

2 (2 Ap,  
1 Ab) 

      

L. Pavitt 6     4 (1Ap)    1 (dep)      

J. Peck 6      3 (dep)  3  of 4 
(1 Ap) 

 4     

L. Rahman 6 11         2 (1 Ap)     

O. Rahman 4 (2Ap) 9 (3 Ap)              

Z. Rahman 6    13  3 (1 Ab) 2 (1 Ab)        

R. Saunders 6    12 (1 Ap) 5 3 (1 Ap)         

D. Snowden 6   2  (1Ap) 1 (dep)   1 (dep – 
inquorate) 

     *15  

G. Thienel 5 (1Ap)        3 (2 Ap) **6 4 0  of 4 
(4 Ap) 

1 (dep)   

B. Turner 6   1  of 2 
(1 Ap) 

     **7 (1 Ap)   9 (2 Ap) *2  

H. Uddin 6  8 (5 Ap)  12 (1 Ap) 2  of 3 
(1 Ap) 

         

K. Uddin 6  12 (1Ap)       1 (dep)      

A. Ullah 6   1 (2 Ap)    2 (1 Ab)  1 (dep)    *2  

M. Uz-Zaman 6        2 (dep)  4  1 (dep)   

A. Whitelock  6   1 (2 Ap) 11 (2 Ap)     1 (trng)    *8  

 

 

*  Part of pool of Members to sit on Licensing Sub-Committees             
 **  Part of pool of Members to sit on Appeals Committees 

 

                 MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE – 18 MAY 2011 –  15 MAY 2012 
 

P
age 53



 Council Cabinet Dev 
Cttee 

Licensing 
Cttee 

O & S 
Cttee 

Health 
Scrutiny 

Panel 

Standards 
Advisory 

Cttee 

Pensions  
Cttee 

Human 
Resources 

Cttee 

Appeals 
Cttee 

Appts 
Sub Cttee 

 

General  
Purposes 

Cttee 

 

Strategic 
Dev 

Cttee 

Licensing 
Sub-Cttee 

Audit  
Cttee 

 

Total Held 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 0 1 
(postponed) 

1 7 1 

                

H. Abbas 3  1          1   

K. Ahmed 3               

K. U. Ahmed 3   1          *5 1 

O. Ahmed 3 1              

R. Ahmed 3   (1 Ap)          *3  

R. U. Ahmed 3 1              

S. Ali 3 1              

T. Archer 3    1           

A. Asad 3 1              

C. Aston 3  1     1       1 

L. Begum 3   (1 Ap)            

M. Chaudhury 3   1      (1 Ap)    *2  

A. Choudhury 3 1              

Z. Davis 3      1      1   

S. Eaton 2 (1Ap)    (1 Ab)        1  ( 1 Ap) 

D. Edgar 2 (1Ap)               

M. Francis 3   (1 Ap)    1        

J. Gardiner 3    1        1   

C. Gibbs 3         (1 Ap)   1  1 

P. Golds 3   (1 Ap)   1       *4  

S. Haque 3 1              

C. Harper-
Penman 

3   1   (1 Ap)        (1 Ap) 

S. Islam 3   1 1         *2  

A. Jackson 3    1     **1      

D. Jones  3   (1 Ap)  1       1 (dep)   

E. Jones 3     1       1   

 
 
*   Part of pool of Members to sit on Licensing Sub-Committees                                                
**  Part of pool of Members to sit on Appeals Committees     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                  MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE – 16 MAY 2012 – 30 JUNE 2012                          APPENDIX 2 
 

P
age 54



 
 

 Council Cabinet Dev 
Cttee 

Licensing 
Cttee 

O & S 
Cttee 

Health 
Scrutiny 

Panel 

Standards 
Advisory  

Cttee 

Pensions  
Cttee 

Human 
Resources 

Cttee 

Appeals 
Cttee 

Appts 
Sub Cttee 

 

General  
Purposes 

Cttee 

 

Strategic 
Dev 

Cttee 

Licensing 
Sub-Cttee 

Audit  
Cttee 

 

Total Held 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 0 1  
(postponed) 

1 7 1 

                

Aminur Khan 3               

Anwar Khan  3  (1 Ap) (1 Ap)          *1 1 

Rabina Khan 3 (1 Ap)              

Rania Khan 3 (1 Ap)      (1 Ap)        

S. Khatun 3  1             

F. Miah 3    (1 Ab)           

H. Miah 3               

M. Miah 3  1             

M. A. Mukit  3     (1 Ap)          

A. Omer 3               

L. Pavitt 3     1    **1      

J. Peck 3      1 (dep)         

L. Rahman 3 1              

J. Pierce 3         **1      

O. Rahman 3 1      (1 Ap)        

Z. Rahman 3      1 1        

G. Robbani 3   (1 Ap)  (1 Ab)          

R. Saunders 3    1 1 1         

D. Snowden 2 (1 Ap)   1          *2  

G. Thienel 3         **1      

B. Turner 3         **1   1   

H. Uddin 3    1        1   

K. Uddin 2 (1 Ap)  1             

A. Ullah 3     (1 Ab)  1       (1  Ap) 

M. Uz-Zaman 3       1        

A. Whitelock  3   1 1         *2  

 

 

*   Part of pool of Members to sit on Licensing Sub-Committees              
**  Part of pool of Members to sit on Appeals Committees 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                 MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE – 16 MAY 2012 – 30 JUNE 2012  
 

P
age 55



APPENDIX 3:    COMPLETION OF DECLARATION OF INTEREST FORMS AND  ATTENDANCE AT TRAINING EVENTS  
                           (MAY 2011 – 15 MAY 2012 and 16 MAY 2012 – 30 JUNE 2012) 
 

Mandatory Training Non-mandatory Learning 
& Development Seminars 

attended 2011/12 
(Max = 5 ) 

Non-mandatory Learning & 
Development Seminars 

attended 2012/13 
(Max = 2 ) 

 Declaration of 
Interest  
Update 

 received: 

Planning & 
Probity 

Appeals  Licensing Appointments   

         

H. Abbas 14.3.12 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

    4 0 

K. Ahmed 19.6.12 11/12 - TBA   Y – 11/12  4 0 

K. U. Ahmed 26.9.11 Y – 11/12 Y – 11/12 
N – TBA – 12/13 

 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 3 1 

O. Ahmed 28.6.12     Y – 11/12 3 1 

R. Ahmed 26.6.12    Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 3 0 

R. U. Ahmed 8.2.12    Y – 11/12  1 0 

S. Ali 18.8.10 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

Y – 11/12    2 0 

T. Archer 18.6.12 Dep – N- TBA – 12/13 
Dep - Y – 11/2 

    1 0 

A. Asad 9.2.12      2 0 

C. Aston 5.3.12 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

    2 1 

L. Begum 31.1.12    N - TBA  1 0 

M. Chaudhury 20.7.10    Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 1 0 

A. Choudhury 7.2.12      1 1 

Z. Davis 26.2.12 Y – 12/13   Y – 11/12  3 0 

S. Eaton 28.3.12 Y – 12/13     2 0 

D. Edgar 5.8.11      2 2 

M. Francis 8.3.12 Y – 11/12   N – (24/7) 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 3 0 

J. Gardiner 12.5.10 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

   Y – 11/12 4 1 

C. Gibbs 1.2.11 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

Dep – N – 12/13    2 0 

P. Golds 11.10.11 Dep – Y – 12/13 
Dep - Y - 11/12 

Dep - Y – 11/12 
Dep N – TBA – 12/13 

 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 2 1 

S. Haque 14.2.12    Y – 11/12  2 0 

C. Harper-
Penman 

13.2.12  Y – 12/13  Y – 12/13 
Y - 11/12 

 2 0 

S. Islam 22.2.12    Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 1 0 

A. Jackson 12.5.10 Dep - Y – 11/12 Y – 12/13    2 1 

D. Jones  14.7.10 Dep – Y – 12/13 
Dep - Y – 11/12 

  N – TBA – 12/13  3 0 

P
age 56



Mandatory Training Non-mandatory Learning & 
Development Seminars 

attended 2011/12  
(Max = 5 ) 

Non-mandatory Learning 
& Development 

Seminars attended 
2012/13 
(Max =  ) 

 Declaration of 
Interest  
update  

received: 

Planning & Probity Appeals  Licensing Appointments   

E. Jones 9.9.11 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

Dep - Y – 11/12 
Dep - Y – 12/13 

   0 0 

Aminur Khan 5.12.11      4 0 

Anwar Khan 27.6.11 N – TBA – 12/13 
Dep – Y – 11/12 

Y – 11/12 
Dep – TBA – 

12/13 

 N – TBA – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 2 0 

Rabina Khan 24.1.12      0 0 

Rania Khan 16.1.12      1 1 

S. Khatun 3.7.12 Y - 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

    4 0 

F. Miah  25.4.12  Dep – N – 11/12   
 

 2 0 

H. Miah 16.9.11  Y – 11/12    1 0 

M. Miah 22.9.11 Y – 12/13 
Y - 11/12 

    1 1 

M. A. Mukit  26.3.12      2 1 

A. Omer 1.9.10      2 0 

L. Pavitt 6.3.12  Dep - Y – 11/12 
Y – 12/13 

   2 2 

J. Peck 14.12.11     Y – 11/12 4 1 

J. Pierce 29.6.12  Y – 12/12    2 1 

O. Rahman 8.2.12      0 0 

Z. Rahman 16.5.12 Y – 11/12     5 2 

G. Robbani 23.4.12  N- TBA – 12/13  Y – 12/13  4 1 

R. Saunders 8.5.12      2 0 

D. Snowden 17.5.10    Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 1 1 

G. Thienel 3.7.12 Dep – N – TBA – 12/13 
Dep - Y – 11/12 

Y – 11/12 
Y – 12/13 

  Y – 11/12 3 0 

B. Turner 7.11.11 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

Y – 11/12 
Y- 12/13 

 Y – 11/12  4 0 

H. Uddin 20.3.12 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

    2 0 

K. Uddin 22.2.12 Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

Dep – Y – 11/12    3 0 

A. Ullah 25.3.12  Dep – Y – 11/12  Y – 11/12  3 0 

M. Uz-Zaman 19.1.12 Dep - Y – 11/12    Y – 11/12 2 0 

A. Whitelock  29.1.12 Dep – Y – 11/12   Y – 12/13 
Y – 11/12 

 1 0 

L. Rahman 
(Mayor) 

28.6.12      1 0 

NB:  Where a Member is appointed to a regulatory committee they may not serve on that committee until they have undertaken the relevant mandatory 
training 

P
age 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	5 MINUTES
	6a Standards Advisory Committee - Membership, Terms of Reference and Programme of Meetings 2012 -13
	6b New Standards Regime
	6e Members' Attendance and Time-sheets

